ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 12, 2006
8:06 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Mke Kelly
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 23
"An Act relating to construction of a legislative hall."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 278

"An Act relating to the Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority;
permtting the Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority or a
subsidiary of the authority to assist state and nunicipal
governnmental enployers by issuing bonds and other comerci al
paper to enable the governnental enployers to prepay all or a
portion of the governnmental enployers' shares of the unfunded
accrued actuari al liabilities of retirement systens and
aut hori zi ng governnental enployers to contract with and to issue
bonds, notes, or conmercial paper to the authority or its
subsidiary corporation for that purpose; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 273

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 12, 2006



"An Act relating to the dividends of individuals claimng
al | owabl e absences; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 23

SHORT TITLE: CONSTRUCTI ON OF LEG SLATI VE HALL
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROKEBERG

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 19/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 05 (H <Bi |l Hearing Postponed>

04/ 23/ 05 (H STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 23/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 23/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

01/ 12/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 278
SHORT TI TLE: RETI REVENT SYSTEM BONDS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAVKER

04/ 19/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 19/ 05 (H) STA, FIN
01/ 12/ 06 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE MARK NEUMAN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered information relating to HB 23.

REPRESENTATI VE NORMAN RCOKEBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 23, as sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 278, as sponsor.

DEVEN M TCHELL, Executive Director

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- January 12, 2006



Al aska Muni ci pal Bond Bank Authority ("Bond Bank")

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the Bond
Bank during the hearing on HB 278.

GREG SUNDBERG, Managi ng Director
Merrill Lynch
Seattl e, Washington

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information and answered
guestions on behalf of Merrill Lynch during the hearing on HB
278.

MARK PRUSSI NG Vi ce President

Seattl e-Nort hwest Securities Corporation

Seattl e, Washi ngton

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of Seattle-
Nort hwest Securities Corporation during the hearing on HB 278.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:06:37 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Elkins, Lynn, Ranras, G uenberg,
and Seat on. Representative Gatto and Gardner arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 23- CONSTRUCTI ON OF LEG SLATI VE HALL

8:07:59 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 23, "An Act relating to construction of a
| egislative hall."

8:08: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MARK NEUMAN, Al aska State Legislature, stated
that through discussions with John Duffy, Manager, Matanuska-
Susitna (Mat-Su) Borough, approximately 1,000 acres have been
identified wthin that borough as available to give any
devel oper rights to construct a legislative hall. He said he
envi sions hotels and shopping areas that would energe there in
what he described as the fastest growing areas in the state. He
i ndicated that about 60 percent of the state lives nearby and
approximately 75 percent of the state would have access by road
to the area.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 12, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN clarified that he is not proposing a nove
of the capital; the legislative hall would just serve as a place
for the legislature to neet during its session. He said he
thinks this is a good option that would not cost the state a | ot
of noney. He noted that there is a fast ferry slated to operate
next year. He said part of the bill requires that there be
access to an airport. He indicated that legislators from the
maj or popul ation areas could go honme at night, thus saving the
state noney in the cost of transportation. Those legislators in
Sout heast, Al aska, he noted would have to do the traveling that
the rest of the legislators are already doing.

8:11: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HB 23, Version 24-LS0164\F, Cook, 1/9/06, as a work draft.
There being no objection, Version F was before the commttee.

8:11:48 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Representative Neuman is suggesting that
the developer would work within the specifications created by
Legi sl ative Council .

8:11: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN answered that's correct. He said, "I
think that it would assist [Legislative] Council trenendously to
have a devel oper there to help them work through this process.”
He said he thinks it may save the state noney and tine.

8:12:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that there is a small 1light plane
landing field there, but he said he doesn't know how cl ose that
is to "the anticipated term nus of the proposed Knik Arm Bridge
on the north side which could be used."

8.12: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said he believes it's a private airstrip,
but he noted that there are plans for the developnment of a
comercial airstrip. He noted that there is natural gas and
electricity in the area.

8:13: 24 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 12, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the original bill limts participation
to boroughs with 30,000 residents and he suggested that would
need to be changed so that the area Representative Neuman is
descri bing could partici pate.

8:13:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN clarified t hat it woul d be t he
muni ci pality of Mat-Su Borough that woul d be invol ved.

8:14: 08 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said he wondered if legislativel/staff
housi ng woul d be provided close to the hall. He clarified that
he is describing some sort of annex that would be owned by the
state.

8:14:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMVAN i ndi cated that sonme type of housing units
may be built; however, he noted that Anchorage is not far away.

8:15:51 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that the conmttee is not hearing a
specific plan right now, Representative Neuman is just com ng
forward to show that there is an area interested in bidding on a
| egi slative hall.

8:17: 05 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said his idea for housing would work
anywhere in the state.

8:17:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said the Mat-Su Borough would donate the
land to a developer that would like to build a legislative hall,
which he said would cost the state virtually nothing for the
construction of the buil ding.

8:17.:51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he is pleased to hear that the
economc engine is working in Mit-Su, but he thinks it's

i nappropriate for the legislature to consider taking economc
sanctions agai nst another comunity.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- January 12, 2006



8:19: 01 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Elkins to hold that thought
for the sponsor of the bill.

8:19: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noted that the [Fiscally Responsible
Al askans Needing Knowl edge (FRANK)] Initiative is repealed on
page 5, Section 6 of Version F. He asked Representative Neuman
if he supports the repeal of the FRANK Initiative.

8:20: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said he would like to wthhold his
response until he is further versed regarding Version F, but he
said he would get back to Representative G uenberg on that. I n
response to Representative Elkins' previous remarks, he asked
that legislator to keep in mnd that he believes that "it is a
major calling by the majority of the state of Alaska to have
access to their legislators while they're in the legislative

session.” He said [if a legislative hall was closer to the
majority of the population], school children could visit the
| egislature and learn its process. He said he recognizes

Representative El kins' concern.
8.22:14 AM
REPRESENTATI VE NORMAN ROKEBERG Al aska State Legislature, as

sponsor of HB 23, referred to the sectional analysis included in
the conmttee packet and reviewed the requirenents of select

sections of Version F. He said Section 2 would require
Legi slative Council to develop specifications by Decenber 15,
2006, changi ng t he term "uniform building code” to
"international building code," as well as sonme other
adm ni strative changes. Section 3, he said, sets the [date by
which the hall nust be conpleted] to June 30, 2009. Section 4
states that Legi sl ative Council nmust [select or reject]
proposals by June 30, 2007. Section 5, he confirned, would

repeal the provision of the FRANK Initiative, included in AS
44.06. 050, 055, and 060.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the FRANK Initiative requires that
the public be informed in advance of all costs involved in
relocating the capital or the |egislature. He expl ai ned that
the repeal provision was added "in order to, in a nore tinely

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 12, 2006



manner, proceed with the activities of the legislature and

Legislative Council on this." He said it is going to be
extrenely difficult to neet the requirenments [of the FRANK
Initiative]. He said the way [HB 23] is designed, the

legislature would only pay $1 a year rent [for a legislative
hall]; however, there would be other costs for relocation, for
exanpl e. He said there would be other "nodest costs,” which he
estimated would be "sonewhat |ess than $10 nmillion maximum" In
ot her words, he explained, the FRANK Initiative is not necessary
under the terns of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the FRANK Initiative was designed
by "the citizens of this fair city to protect their position as
holding onto the capital."” He said the attorney general (AGQ
found that the requirenments of the initiative were that al
bondabl e costs be part of the costs of either relocating the
capital or the |egislature. He said in 1982, voters rejected a
ball ot proposition to relocate the capital to WIIlow Al aska,
after the FRANK Initiative had been adopt ed. The estimate for
that nove was $2.8 billion, which he said was an absurd figure
that the people of the state naturally rejected.

8:27:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG revealed his strong background in
commercial real estate devel opnent. He said it's always been
his contention that a construction of a new capital could be
acconplished for Ilittle or no cost to the state, because
"private sector real estate developers would lust after the
chance to build a new capital building."” He nentioned a
buil ding in Anchorage that, for exanple, could be converted to a
capital for under $35 million, but he said he's not reconmendi ng
t hat . In regard to the previous coments of Representative
El kins to Representative Neuman, he stated:

| believe in ny heart of hearts that the only way

we're going to get a new capitol building - and |
strongly advocate that - is to have this type of
conpetition ... throughout the state on the |evel
playing field that everybody has a chance to nake a
proposal. That includes Juneau. | thoroughly believe

that building could be in this comunity. I
believe the people in this comunity would have ... a
very good chance of w nning that proposal. They' ve

been reluctant to agree to the financing arrangenents
under this legislation; they want the legislature to
pay for their new capitol building. That's the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 12, 2006



di stinction here. | think that they need to make the
commtment to the legislature if they want to have a

| egi slature here ... to pay for that  building
t hensel ves - not expect us to pay the bonding rent to
anortize the debt on a new structure. That's the

distinction. So, the folks here in Juneau need to get
off their noney and prove to the people in the rest of
the state that they deserve to have this legislature

her e. That's the issue, and that's why |'m asking
that the FRANK Initiative be repeal ed, because it's,
frankly, intellectually dishonest the way it's been

used in the past to scare the people of this state.
8:31:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that in 2002 there was an attenpt
to repeal the FRANK Initiative through a ballot proposition, and
that attenpt fail ed. She asked, "Does that not give us pause
for repealing it |egislatively?"

8:32: 15 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Representative Gardner to consider
that the man in charge of that initiative dropped the ball m d-
way t hrough
8:33: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said nevertheless the initiative failed
in a public vote.

8:33:17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said that in essence, nmoving the

| egislature would "trickle down" to noving the whole capital
because there are many support agencies in Juneau. He rem nded

Representative Rokeberg that forner Governor Bill Sheffield
nmoved 200 jobs to Anchorage, which crippled [Juneau] in respect
to real estate until recently. He added that Ketchikan also

felt the inpact fromthe | oss of the econony in Juneau.

8:34.: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that he tends to disagree wth
t hat anal ysi s. First, he said Anchorage has historically had
nore state enployees than Juneau. Regarding the historical

inpact, he said he questions the "economic ripple effect of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 12, 2006



Juneau and Ket chi kan. " He said it's cl ear t hat t he

environnmental |obbies and the inpacts of the closure of the
Tongass National Forest to tinber, and the closure of the
Ketchikan Pulp MIIl has had negative inpacts to Southeast
econony. He added, "I would be the first to admt, however,
that if, in fact, the ... legislature were to nove out of
Juneau, it would have a negative inpact. | would agree wth

that. That's one reason | wanted to pursue just the |egislative
activities and not the entire capitol building."

8:36:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to a letter from director of
the Bureau of Education witten to a United States Senator on
May 3, 1890, which states that noving the capital from Sitka to
Juneau would be a bad idea for many of the sanme argunents that

still exist today. He stated his belief that what is not going
to happen is to have a new capitol built in Juneau that is paid
for by all the citizens of the state. He enphasi zed the need

for a new capitol building and said he voted against the recent
remodel on the House and Senate chanbers because the cost was
$.75 mllion for an ineffective and poor design.

8:38:46 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated that inpacts do occur when changes are nade.
He gave an exanple of the nove of the ferry systemto Ketchikan.

8:39:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he agrees that this capitol
building is substandard. He said the repeal of the FRANK
Initiative troubles him because that initiative strengthens the
initiative process in the state. The public's right to know and
participate in this issue is sonmething that the people prize, he
said, and repealing the initiative would "cloud the issue.”
Regardi ng Representative Rokeberg's coments about costs being
| oner than stated, he suggested that, in that case, nore
di sclosure is better than |ess.

8:42: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that philosophically that is
true. Conversely, he pointed out that there have been 10 or 11
initiatives in 40 years of statehood. He said the community of
Juneau rightfully does everything it can to hang on to the
| egislature. He stated that the people of Al aska have expressed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- January 12, 2006



their will in "some of these votes" approving a new | ocation.
Furthernore, he said the Alaska State Constitution provides that
the legislature can provide its own hone. He said HB 23 would
allow the legislature to do that through the repeal of the FRANK
Initiative.

8:43: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed t hat t he Al aska State
Constitution also specifically provides that the people of the
state can adopt initiatives, which they have done through the
FRANK I nitiative.

8:44: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON st at ed:

My understanding is that the repeal of this provision
addresses the dollar lease to the state, whereas
the FRANK Initiative would require the analysis of the

total value of the land - the total cost of the
bui |l di ngs, even though we're not going to pay for
those buildings - we're not going to pay for that
land, but that would be the bondable cost of the
capitol .... |1 think that this is what Representative

Rokeberg was tal king about was the bondable cost of a
building that we're not building actually gives us a
false picture of what we're doing. And the FRANK
Initiative was based on us building a new capitol.

8:45: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to AS 44.06. 055,
which read as foll ows:

Sec. 44.06.055. Relocation expenditures.

State noney may be expended to relocate physically the
capital or the legislature from the present |ocation
only after a mgjority of those voting in a statew de
el ection have approved a bond issue that includes all
bondable costs to the state of the relocation of a
functional state legislature or capital to the new
site over the twelve-year period following such

approval . The comm ssion established in AS 44.06. 060
shall determne all bondable costs and total costs
including, but not limted to, the costs of noving

personnel and offices to the relocation site; the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- January 12, 2006



social, economic, and environmental <costs to the
present and relocation sites; and the costs to the
state of planning, building, furnishing, using, and
financing facilities at |east equal to those provided
by the present capital city.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the only thing that has to be
given to the voters in a referendum under the FRANK Initiative

is "the bondable issue.” I[f, in fact, there are not state
bonds, he observed, then the FRANK Initiative "would not require
that the voters approve it." He added, "So, we should not
repeal it." He said the question in his mnd is whether the
FRANK Initiative would apply to the deal. If it does not, he

reasoned, then it does not have to be repeal ed. He concl uded,
"That just clouds the issue."

8:46: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that there is an attorney
general's opinion that drove the 1issue pertaining to the
definition of all bondable costs. He stated his understanding
of that opinion is that "anything that could be bonded was to be
part of the dollar anount."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his interpretation is that that
means "bondabl e costs to the state, not the citizens of Juneau."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded, "It doesn't say that, and
that's how the AGs opinion is."

8.47. 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON said this is a question that needs to be resol ved,
and he asked Representative Rokeberg to get the AGs opinion to
the conmm tt ee.

8:47:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if the state would be required to
underwrite any of the bonds.

8:.47.45 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG answered no, not the way HB 23 is
drafted. He noted that he recently had served on the conmmttee

for capitol planning at the request of Juneau's Mayor Bruce
Bot hel | o. The cost of that proposal, under the FRANK

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 12, 2006



Initiative, should have gone on the ballot for the approval of
t he public.

8:48: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one to
testify, closed public testinony. In response to a request from
Representative Gardner, he said he would reopen public testinony
at a later date for anyone who just received the commttee
substitute and wi shes to testify.

8:50:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said whether the capital is ultimately
noved "under the rest of the bill" is a potential issue, whereas
the repeal of the FRANK Initiative would occur inmediately;
therefore, he said he agrees with Representative Gardner that
there may be people who want to testify.

8:51:14 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated his interest in obtaining an opinion from
Legi sl ative Legal and Resear ch Servi ces regar di ng t he
applicability of bonding.

8:51: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that sonmeone from the Ofice of
the Attorney CGeneral be prepared to testify.

8:52: 05 AM
CHAI R SEATON announced that HB 23 was heard and hel d.

HB 278- RETI REMENT SYSTEM BONDS

8:52:41 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 278, "An Act relating to the Al aska Muinicipal Bond Bank
Aut hority; permtting the Al aska Minicipal Bond Bank Authority
or a subsidiary of the authority to assist state and nunicipa

governmental enployers by issuing bonds and other comerci al

paper to enable the governnental enployers to prepay all or a
portion of the governnental enployers' shares of the unfunded
accrued actuari al liabilities of retirement systens and
aut hori zi ng governnental enployers to contract with and to issue

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 12, 2006



bonds, notes, or conmercial paper to the authority or its
subsidiary corporation for that purpose; and providing for an
effective date."

8:52:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 278, said in the first half of the Twenty-Third Al aska
State Legislature nuch tinme was spent discussing the state's
pensi on funds, which are underfunded. He said alnbst every
public entity in America is facing simlar circunstances. He
said it is the responsibility of the legislature to find a way
to pay off that obligation in the nost expedient manner and with
the | east possible costs to the taxpayers of the state. He told
the conmttee that he is presenting a high-level, broad
di scussion of a vehicle that could allow the state to pay off
that liability. He said that the amount of the liability is
approximately $6 billion. All the public enmployers that pay
into those plans owe that noney, he explained. He said the
state does not have a bank account with $6 billion in it to use
to pay off that liability.

8:56:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER reviewed that that liability accrues
interest each year at about 8.25 percent. He said the crux of
the bill is paying off the liability or a portion thereof
i mredi ately, getting noney into the system to start [earning
interest]. He said if the state could find a way to borrow the
noney for 5 percent, for exanple, the state would, over tineg,
save 3 percent while paying off the debt. He indicated that

that is what a pension obligation bond (POB) would do, and he
said HB 278 would be the vehicle to allow participants in the
retirement plan to investigate the possibility of using POBs.
He said if the state executes such a transaction the potenti al
exi sts of saving the taxpayers of Al aska $1.5 billion.

8:59: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER turned to the sponsor statenment and
reviewed the three conponents of the bill, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

HB 278 authorizes the Al aska Muinicipal Bond Authority
to consider issuing pension obligation bonds (POBs) at
the request of the state or a nunicipal governnental
enpl oyer. POBs are a proven and acceptable tool to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- January 12, 2006



manage pre-existing liabilities for state and |ocal

pensi ons. Bond market participants are receptive to
POBs, including bond insurers, rating agencies and
i nvestors.

HB 278 expands the authority of the Al aska Minicipa
Bond Authority to support the state or a municipality
that wishes to include POBs in their strategy to
reduce t he cost of neet i ng unf unded pensi on
liabilities.

This bill does not authorize any debt instrunents to
be issued. The state or a nunicipality would need to
take a separate specific action to utilize this new
ability of the Minicipal Bond Bank Authority.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER referred to a handout included in the

committee  packet, entitl ed, “"An Introduction to Pension
ol i gati on Bonds." He noted that the docunent was prepared by
Roger Davis of Orick. He encouraged the conmmttee nenbers to

review the docunent, stating his belief that doing so would give
them a conprehensive understanding of the pros and cons that

must be considered. He said Orick is an experienced,
prof essi onal bond counseling firm Attached to the same handout
are two witten "what if" discussions - one from Merrill Lynch
and one from UBS Financial Services, Inc. He noted that also

included in the paperwork are research papers provided from
Standard & Poor's (S&P) - a bond rating agency, entitled: "POBs

surging after brief hiatus"; "Minaging State Pension Liabilities
- A Gowng Credit Concern'; "US.  Public Pensions Face
Uncertain Tinmes"; and "Pension Cbligation Bonds - Wre They A
Good Bet ?" The last item in the package of information, he

noted, is a resolution from the Al aska Minicipal League (AM)
asking that the authority be granted for public enployees in
Al aska to consider "these financing vehicles."

9:05: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER directed attention to page 8 of the Orick
report, which shows that the POBs are better than the
alternatives, which are: to pay nore into the pension fund; to
ask enployees to pay nore into the pension fund; to reduce
benefits; or to do nothing and hope the gain on investnents wll
ultimately solve the problem He noted that the disadvantages
are listed on page 9 of the Orick report. He said the state
could wite a check for $6 billion out of the constitutional
budget reserve (CBR), the earnings of the permanent fund, and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 12, 2006



this year's surplus, but he doesn't see that as a viable
alternative. He said he sees the nechanism [that HB 278 woul d
allow] as less objectionable as a neans of mtigating the
state's cost than witing that check and taking every penny the
state has off the table.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said sone will warn that POBs will injure
the state's credit rating. He directed attention to page 13 of
the Orick report, which includes extracts of rating agency
comments about the concept of using pension obligation bonds to
reduce the ultimate cost of satisfying the pension obligation.
He said the rating agencies essentially endorse the concept.
The comments generally say that a properly structured
transaction is endorsed and would potentially enhance the
state's <credit rating, because the state would be taking
positive, proactive steps, recognized and acceptable to Wll
Street, to address the existing | arge, unfunded obligation.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that Mody's Investors Service,
Standard & Poor's, Fitch, Inc., and [Duff & Phelps are the
maj or rating agencies. He pointed to the comrent on page 13
witten by Fitch, Inc., which read as foll ows:

Fitch believes that POBs, if used nobderately and in
conjunction with a prudent approach to investing the
proceeds and other pension assets, can be a useful
tool in asset-liability managenent.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the key is the word "noderately.” He
said anyone who has ever |ost noney investing in the stock
mar ket understands that it is possible to lose nobney in a
financial transaction.

9:11: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said sonme will say a constitutional issue
may exi st. He said, "Qur constitution has a provision that
basically, on the surface, says the state can only borrow noney
for capital developnment projects.” He stated that it 1is
possible to structure transactions that conply wth that
constitutional guideline. He said the Merrill Lynch conpany

addresses constitutional issues and a "legal structuring that
woul d conply with" the Alaska State Constitution. He proffered
that if the legislature grants the authority, there are smart

| awers and investnent bankers that will be able to work wth
the public enployers of the state to create transactions that
will be constitutionally sound. He asked commttee nenbers to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 12, 2006



not close their mnds to sonmething that has the potential of
savi ng the taxpayers of Alaska $1.5 billion or nore.

9:13:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated that the entire decision in
considering POBs revolves around the risk and reward trade off.
He said he wants to enmpower public enployers and the conpetent
professionals they would work with to propose specific financing
structures for consideration by the appropriate authoritative
body. That body would assess the risks and find a structure
within a risk tolerance |evel. The easiest thing for public
enpl oyees to do, he said, is to not nmake a decision that entails
risk. The private sector, on the other hand, takes cal cul ated
risks. Representative Hawker said the public sector needs to
"take a lesson" from and nerge with the private sector. He
rem nded the commttee that HB 278 is not about nmaking the
deci sion about what risk will be tolerated or what specific
mechanism of approach to wuse; it is sinply a bill that
aut horizes public enployers across the state, the investnent
banks, and the |legal comunity to get together and bring to the
appropriate authority a proposal to eval uate.

9:16: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated, "The ultimate control is in the
eval uation of a specific transaction, but we can't even |ook at
the specific transaction until we, as a legislative body, allow
people to think out of the box." He asked the conmittee not to
get bogged down in the details of any possible transaction.

9:17: 53 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked where in the bill it is witten that the
public entity would conme back to the |egislature.

9:18: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that each entity would go through
its particular authority. For exanple, the school district
woul d go through the school board. He said, "Specifically, this
grants the ... Bond Bank [the] authority to set up the structure

to facilitate these transactions."

CHAI R SEATON r esponded:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 12, 2006



Right, | just want to clarify that, because | thought
| heard you saying that they would cone back to us
wi th proposals. But really ... this bill actually
aut horizes them to devel op and go through their public
process to issue pension obligation bonds.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER interjected, "Or to wundertake such a
transaction.”

9:19: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her appreciation in
Representative Hawker's bringing the bill forward. She said
that sonetines the state's public liability for the pension

systemis conpared to a nortgage. However, she said if she were
to buy a $200,000 house, she would know exactly what the debt
is, and she would have full use of the entire value of that hone

during the tine she owns it. The pension liability is not
concrete, she noted. She stated her wunderstanding that the
state has enough noney in its accounts to pay for "everything
that falls due today." She surmsed that the problem is "out
into the future.” She asked if that is correct.

9:20: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said there is a lot of noney in the
pensi on funds today. There is also an obligation that the funds
in the bank today nust satisfy in the future. The cal cul ation
shows that, over time, there is not enough wealth in the fund to
neet the obligations that exist today. Doi ng nothing, he
expl ained, would result in less noney in the pool to earn the
conmpound interest that is factored into neeting the total
obligations and, thus, in a "nore expensive solution.” Using a
nmortgage analysis, he said if a person makes a large principa

paynent up front, that paynment is reduced, with less to pay in
the |long run. He said the situation is simlar for the state

He said, "W would have nore noney in the pot to invest, so we
get a greater investnment return.”

9:23:23 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated as a remnder that three quarters of the
noney paying those obligations comes from investnent earnings.
He sai d:

For every dollar we don't have in the bank now, it
takes basically $4 in the future. C. You' re not

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 12, 2006



just underfunding a dollar. ... The 75 percent that
that dollar is supposed to earn to pay those
obligations isn't going to be there, because it hasn't
been in there earning from the present dollar to the
obl i gation doll ar.

9:24:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GARDNER  concl uded t hat that's a m ssed
opportunity cost. She clarified her previous question. She
noted that an interest of 8.25 percent had been nentioned. She
asked, "Were does that cone in? Are we already paying interest
on what we don't have for the future?”

9:24: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  HAVWKER explained that al | the actuari al
eval uations are predicated on: "W put noney in, and when the
nmoney's there it nakes 8-plus percent. If the noney's not

there, it's not nmaking the 8-plus percent and we're getting
deeper in the hole every day."

9: 25: 38 AM

CHAI R SEATON remarked that there is a sort of reverse action
t hat exi sts. He explained that if the state calculated that it
would only be earning 5 percent, instead of 8.25 percent, then
the current obligation, instead of being approximtely $6
billion, would be $10-12 billion. He offered further details.

9:27: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the POB solution is not a short-term
fix, but works only because of averages in the market over tine.

He cited the 10-year returns for the follow ng: PERS
investnments at 8.1 percent; TRS at 8.2 percent; and the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation at 8.7 percent. He said the State of

Al aska has had extraordinary anounts of noney to invest in the
capital markets of the world and has devel oped proven i nvestnent
structures through the use of successful managenent. He said an
8 percent return is "achievable, valid, and a paraneter that we
don't have to question in this analysis."

9:29: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered questions that need to be
asked: The first question is whether the state should do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 12, 2006



anyt hi ng. The next question is whether the state should use
POBs and, if so, whether the Bond Bank should be used. He noted
that Representative Hawker has chosen the Bond Bank to be the
i ssuing authority. He stated his understanding that the Bond
Bank typically issues bonds for nunicipalities and the bil
woul d significantly expand its authority. He asked
Representati ve Hawker to comrent.

9:31: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER deferred to representatives from Merril
Lynch. He proffered that the use of the Al aska Minicipal Bond
Bank Authority ("Bond Bank") as part of structuring a
transaction is constitutionally acceptable. It is a facility
that has a |lot of conpetent, qualified professionals for
"issuing debt."

9:32: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would |ike that question
answered in the future. He noted that the final paragraph of
t he sponsor statenent read: "This bill does not authorize any
debt instruments to be issued.” He said it appears to him that
the text of the bill does exactly that.

9:33:12 AM
REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER clarified that the bill aut hori zes

transactions to occur, but it does not authorize any specific
transacti on.

9:34: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d Representative Hawker has all uded
to certain constitutional issues. Traditionally, if there are
constitutional issues in a bill, that bill is heard by the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee. He said he is interested in

solving those issues in the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee for the sake of expedi ency.

9:35: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, said the
bill would offer nunicipalities some choice in their own destiny
and "sone |evel of acceptance of risk." Regarding the previous

conparison to a nortgage, he suggested using that conparison,
but adding things into it such as the cost of fuel and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 12, 2006



electricity, which my double along the way, and an uninsured
risk. He explained that Representative Hawker's situation is
that he is trying to estimate what the total cost of 25 years
paying off an obligation is, but there are a lot of variables
along the way. He stated that there is a great m sunderstanding
regardi ng the 8.25 percent.

9:38: 35 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked, "Were does the state cone in ... to back up
that bond for that nunicipality that we're authorizing in the
bill to go forward and i ssue a debt instrunent?”

9:39: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that the question of who is
obligated would be determ ned by the terns and conditions of the
bond indenture itself. He enphasized that the state would not
accrue any new liability; the state would just be allow ng
enpl oyers to pursue and choose transactions.

9:40: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY noted that "last year" a conversation took
place with M. Boutin regarding the possibility of involving the
state "in sone fashion that would probably |ower the cost and
increase the delta between 8.25 percent and sone (indisc. --

coughi ng) nunber, which is what this would attenpt to do." He
asked if the bill addresses sonme of what M. Boutin was talking
about .

9:41: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER replied that he is not famliar with what
was di scussed, but he remarked that the less risk on a |oan that
the | ender perceives, the lower the rates that can be executed.

He rem nded the conmittee that that |evel of detail is not the
focus of this discussion; the l|legislature just needs to decide
whether to allow the markets to "go forward and ... work."

9:42: 27 AM

CHAI R SEATON surm sed that Representative Kelly wants to know if
there is an alternative to having the state bonding authority do
t he worKk. He said there may be an alternative, but that would
requi re an anendnent to the bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 12, 2006



9:43: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER asked the commttee to renmenber that the
bill would not force anyone to take a risk, but would allow all
the different public enployers to meke their own risk
determ nati ons.

9:44: 01 AM

DEVEN M TCHELL, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal Bond Bank
Authority ("Bond Bank"), disclosed that he is also the Debt
Manager for the Treasury Division, wthin the Departnent of
Revenue. M. Mtchell reviewed that the Bond Bank is a public
corporation of the State of Alaska that was created in 1976. He
said the reason for its creation was because at that tineg,

generally all conmmunities in A aska were penalized in the
capital market because of the perception of Alaska as a Third
Wrld country. He said there was "an Al askan penalty when we

went to market," and [the Bond Bank] "offered an opportunity to
create a nmore efficient nmeans of access in the capital markets
for Al askan communities.” Over the last five years, he noted,
the Bond Bank has issued approximately $4 mllion in bonds for
|l oans to 52 different projects. He offered exanples.

MR. M TCHELL said he thinks the reason that the Bond Bank was
selected for inclusion in HB 278 is because of the role the Bond
Bank currently plays with nunicipal entities in helping them
finance their capital needs in an efficient manner. He said
there is a "state support to the Bond Bank," which is called a
noral obligation of the State of Al aska. In the statutes that
create the Bond Bank there are provisions for the creation of a
reserve fund. That reserve fund, he noted, is essentially the
equi val ent of one year's debt service of all of the Bond Bank's
bonds. He expl ained that when the Bond Bank borrows noney, it
issues bonds in the capital markets; it takes that noney and
lends it to the comunities at the sane rates at which it
borrowed the noney. All the Bond Bank's bonds in its general
obligation program he said, are issued on a parity basis,
meani ng that "they have the sanme plane on assets and revenues as
ot her bonds in the reserve fund.”" He said the Bond Bank has an
approximately $30 million reserve fund that secures the bonds.
M. Mtchell stated that if there was a draw on that reserve
fund because one of the comunities defaulted, in all but one
case the reserve would fully pay for that conmunity's debt
service, "and so that creates part of the credit of the bond
bank. " He added, "But if there were a draw on that reserve
because of a conmunity default, we would be ... required by the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 12, 2006



statute to request the legislature and the governor to
appropriate noney to replenish that reserve. That is the nora
obligation; the requirenment that we request the replenishnment
inplies that we would receive the replenishnment in the noral
obl i gations."

9:47:39 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if there is any distinction between the
security backing a general obligation bond and the POBs if they
wer e issued through [the Bond Bank].

9:47:54 AM

MR. M TCHELL noted that there is a revenue bond program in the
Bond Bank that relies on specific enterprise credit strength
He said, "So, this would maybe be nore simlar to that in the

structure as proposed.” He noted that there are sone questions
about the structure and "the inplenentation of that; how that
woul d be managed.” He said Representative Hawker, in his

testinmony, alluded to a proposal that contenplates the possible
use of a revenue bond structure, and there is sonme disagreenent
in the legal comunity regarding whether or not that would be
allowed. He advised the commttee of the need for discussion on
additional issues to ensure that the proper structure would be
in place to neet certain expectations.

9:49: 26 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if M. Mtchell was suggesting that the
commttee should resolve that question before it authorizes
i ssuance of the bonds.

9:49: 50 AM

MR. M TCHELL said that issue should be resolved sooner rather
than later. He spoke of finding mddle ground. He continued:

In Oregon they actually ... [dealt] with a simlar
issue. | don't know all the nuances of it, but in the
end they wound up having a constitutional anmendnent to
allow general obligation pledges of local districts
for this type of obligation, which our constitution
prohibits at this point because there's no capital
proj ect .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 12, 2006



And the [difficulty] with revenue bonds is there's not
an enterprise; it's a contractual promse to pay that

exists to the pension system If you want vyour
participants to receive the pensions that were
promsed to them you have to pay. Whet her or not
that can be transferred then to a bond issue is a
difficult question to answer, | think, even anobngst
att or neys.

9:51: 18 AM

CHAI R SEATON encouraged M. Mtchell to continue to share his
knowl edge with the commttee as the hearings on HB 278 progress.

MR MTCHELL, in response to a request from Representative
Gruenberg, agreed to supply the commttee with a thorough
description of who he is and what he does.

9:52: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told M. Mtchell that if he believes
there is a constitutional issue, he would like to see a |egal
opinion and a draft constitutional anendnent.

9:53:23 AM

MR. M TCHELL said he has not seen a |egal opinion. He reveal ed
that he is involved in a transaction that will close in February
[ 2006], involving five comunities and five bond councils, in
addition to the bond council wth which he works. He said
during casual conversations there have been a variety of
opi ni ons expressed. He said he thinks Representative G uenberg
is asking for sonething nuch nore formal, and he recommended an
opi nion be obtained fromthe Ofice of the Attorney General. In
response to Chair Seaton, he offered to request that opinion.

9:54:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he wants the legislature to
be on good | egal ground.

9:56: 04 AM
GREG SUNDBERG, Managing Director, Merrill Lynch, noted that he
had brought wth him a handout [included in the commttee

packet] entitled, "Presentation to: State of Al aska: PERS/ TRS
Updat e Pension (bligation Bonds January 2006." He said it would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 12, 2006



take 2.5 hours to make the presentation in depth; therefore he
suggested that he could sinply answer questions from the
commttee. He also provided a list entitled, "Minicipal Taxable
Pensi on Fi nancings 2001-Present” [J[included in the comittee
packet], which he said contains simlar information to what
Representative Hawker included in his previously reviewed
handout . In response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, he confirmed that there is also a handout entitled

"Al aska School Districts and Municipal Governnents Re: TRS and
PERS Liability Refinancing,” which was already in the commttee
packet froma prior hearing in 2005.

9:59: 00 AM

MR. SUNDBERG stated that POBs are but one piece of the puzzle.
He said the nmuch harder work is that which the |egislature has
al ready undertaken to solve the system c problem He said
Merrill Lynch has addressed the liability that has increased
over the years and "stands at an actuarial -assessed nunber as of
the current day." He said Representative Gardner indicated
accurately previously that that's a nunber that can shift over
tinme. He indicated that the nunmber will probably never get to
zero, but it could dimnish or increase. He said the tool that
i s being proposed for consideration is one step in the process.

10: 00: 24 AM

CHAIR SEATON directed attention to page 2 of the update, and
defined sone terns used: "UAL" neans unanortized actuarial
l[tability and "PV' neans present val ue. He turned to page 1,

whi ch shows the PERS/ TRS unfunded liability as of June 30, 2004.
He noted that the liability has been steadily increasing. By
July 2005, the total liability was $6.0 billion, and by July
2006, he said it will be $6.5 billion. He said, "Those nunbers
are not changing; those are the sane nunbers, but it's just that
we're a year later and we haven't had 8.25 percent interest on
that present val ue deposit, and so the nunber's still the sane."”
| f nothing happens as far as contributions into the system by
July 2007, he warned, that obligation will be $7.1 billion. He
added that that would be wthout any changes; "that's just
because of not having another year of noney in the bank
accunul ating interest."

10: 03: 27 AM

MR. SUNDBERG confirmed that Chair Seaton's statenents are
absol utely accurate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 12, 2006



10: 03: 33 AM

CHAIR SEATON, in response to a question

from Representative

Gruenberg, said the source of the nunbers came from the
actuarial firm Mercer Human Resource Consul ting.

10: 04: 18 AM

MR. SUNDBERG said those who work in the debt
di stinguish in terns of the |egal franmework
contractual obligations. He continued:

markets tend not to
surroundi ng debt or

W |ook at an obligation that you re being charged

8.25 percent on, based on an actuaria

of the appropriate rate that vyou'l
i nvest at. And there's sone conponent

det erm nati on
need to both
of that that's

going to be interest; there's some conponent that's

going to be principal - exactly Ilike

your nortgage.

And that's a rate that's necessary in order for you to
conmpound to satisfy your future obligation of this

unfunded liability So, contrast that
where ..., instead of conpounding that

with a world
8.25 percent,

you could ... pay a rate equal to what your cost of

borrowi ng those funds is.

Again, |looking at one obligation versus another:
whet her you have a contractual obligation to nmake

t hose paynents on a year-to-year basis

or whet her you

have a contractual obligation to nmake debt service

paynents, the obligation itself s

in essence the

sarne. The result is markedly different, because in
the bond world - at least as afforded in current
markets and as indicated by Representative Hawker
earlier - the rate right now falls sonewhere between

probably 5.5 and 6.5 percent. So, markedly |ower than

the actuarial yield you' d be charged.

The nunber that Representative Hawker referred to

earlier, which is the present value or ... -current
dollars, ... that difference is roughly sonewhere
around $1 billion .... That in a nutshell is really

t he sinple mechanics of what we're tal king about here.

10: 07: 00 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25-

January 12, 2006



MR. SUNDBERG said he would now distinguish between the debt

bond
cont

The conmm ttee took an at-ease from 10:08:29 AMto 10: 16: 59 AM

side of the equation and the investnent side.
i nued:

Not wapped up in the bond side is the prospect of
what you do with the noney once you have borrowed it.
Instead of just paying a paynent based on an

interest rate of 8.25 percent per year, in a bond
world it is a requirenent that you actually invest the
noney. So, one thing that you need to do from your
standpoint - a due diligence standpoint - is nake sure
you have a vehicle in place that you're confortable
with from an investnent perspective. And, by all
accounts and by all observation, you, in fact, do have
that. You certainly have sonething that would satisfy

the requirenents  of the rating agencies that

Representative Hawker referred to earlier - Standard &

Poor's, Mdody's, and Fitch - as affording a high |evel
of confidence that you were going to have an entity
that was investing in a prudent fashion. That is
conpletely separate from the bond side, and the tool
that we're proposing as a potential piece of the

puzzle does not incorporate a strategy for the
investnment of funds or a necessary conponent for the
investnment of funds. |It's conpletely separate.

or
He

10: 17: 29 AM

MR. SUNDBERG suggested the easiest way to | ook at [changing to a
POB structure] is changing "one nortgage obligation for another
nortgage obligation.” He said virtually every nunicipal entity
is well accustonmed to refinancing its debt from a higher
interest rate to a |lower one. He continued:

10:1

And what you do when that process is undertaken is
that you structure a new bond issue at a |ower cost
that has cash flows that are on a pro rata basis
proportionate to your previous paynents, but in fact
| ower, because it's a lower interest rate. And that's
anot her useful tool, | think, in ternms of using bonds
versus your existing contractual obligation for an
unfunded liability at 8.25 percent.

8:47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 12, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are other kinds of
financing that the committee should consider allow ng under HB
278. He asked if there are variables or other Kkinds of
securities that would prevent the necessity of underwiting new
bonds every tine the interest rate changes.

10:19: 26 AM

MR. SUNDBERG said he is referring to bonds in a generic sense.
He explained that within the framework of bonds there are a
nunber of di fferent structural features t hat can be
i ncor por at ed.

10: 19: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that he wants to ensure that
the words being used would all ow even the nost conservative bond
|awer to "do what you're saying." He said he would |ike M.
Sundberg to return with an answer.

10: 20: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that the |anguage of the bill does
not refer to bonds, per se; therefore, it is constructed to
provi de access to the w dest variety of financial instrunents
avai |l abl e on the street.

10: 20: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 23 of the update, the
"Oregon Exanple,” which shows results for the Gty of Portland

He noted that the City of Portland used a conbination of fixed
and variable rate debt. Hi storically, he said, the cost of
variable rate debt has been significantly below the cost of
fixed rate debt. The risk of variable rate debt is that rates
spi ke up. He said it could be conservatively argued that a
straight fixed rate program offers nore assurance and certainty.

10: 22: 59 AM

MR. SUNDBERG in response to a comment by Chair Seaton

proffered that the variable rate does afford the additional
benefit of being redeemable at any tine. In response to a
question from Chair Seaton, he said |l|ong-term obligations
typically have a redenption provision for calling the debt back
in and restructuring it. Inside of 10 years - based on the cal

date on the bonds - the obligations could be advance refunded.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 12, 2006



Qutside of 10 years, he said, there is the sane flexibility as
with variable rate obligations.

10: 24: 15 AM

MR. SUNDBERG in response to a followup question from Chair
Seaton, said the market has evolved to the point where there are

a lot of obligations - particularly in the tax-exenpt realm
where there's not a premum charged for "redenption of bonds
early.” He concluded, "In the taxable world - which these

obligations would be taxable - there is nore often a redenption
prem uminside that 10 years."

10: 24: 32 AM

MR. SUNDBERG, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said there are entities in various jurisdictions in
the U S. who have "l ooked for ways to do these on [a] tax exenpt

basis.” He said the federal governnent tends to frown on ways
for the state to benefit at the expense of +the federal
gover nment . He said, "In our way of thinking and in the

foreseeabl e future, we see these as always taxable obligations."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Wat is the criterion for
determ ning whether an obligation issued by a state or |[ocal
government or an entity |like the Bond Bank Authority would be
tax exenpt versus non-tax exenpt? What's the bright |ine
criterion that the [Internal Revenue Service (IRS)] uses?"

MR. SUNDBERG answered that it varies by entity and by type of

purpose to which the nonies will be applied. He said, "But as a
general rule, in this instance what we're dealing with is a
situation where the federal governnent frowns on the ability of
alocal ... or ... state jurisdiction to be able to borrow noney

at a tax-exenpt rate and reinvest it at a taxable rate. There
are very limted circunstances where you can do that, and that
would tend to be the bright line."

10: 26: 51 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he would like to pose that question to the
Al aska Munici pal Bond Bank Authority at a future date, in order
to get an answer froma state perspective.

10: 27: 20 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -28- January 12, 2006



MR. SUNDBERG recall ed another issue that had been addressed was
in regard to the type of vehicle that would be used to fund a
bond obligation within the state of Al aska. M. Sundberg said
that although he is not an attorney, he works in a world that
intersects with bond attorneys every day. He conti nued:

W try to have a nexus where we cone up with an
idea and we match that to existing |aws, best as
possible, and if there are requirenents to tweak or
change the law, we tweak or change the law to the
extent that it is desirable on the part of the
benefiting entity. W try to, at all costs, avoid
things that would require constitutional change,
because that's sonmething that's probably the nost
difficult to achieve.

So, ... when we first started |looking at this issue

we were looking at it on the basis of individual
muni ci pal jurisdictions - not Jlooking at it on a
statew de basis necessarily or the state specifically.
W ... imediately cane to the conclusion that it
would be very difficult to do this wunder Al aska
constitutional law, that ... a general obligation -

which is the |east expensive way of borrow ng -
woul d run afoul of the constitution.

MR. SUNDBERG said Merrill Lynch considered whom an experienced
entity would be that could serve as a conduit or as an issuing
entity for the contractual obligations that the nunicipa
entities have built up. He stated that the Bond Bank has a | ong
hi story of providing funding for nunicipal jurisdictions. He
said thus far the issue of whether the state itself could solve
or address its unfunded liability through the use of the Bond
Bank has not been discussed. That, he said, is a question that
attorneys need to westle wth further. What has been
questioned is whether there is a precedent for municipal
entities comng individually to the Bond Bank for the issuance
of debt, and the answer is yes.

MR. SUNDBERG said, "W junped then from general obligation

issues to two ... different types of bond issues based on the
revenue stream that's used to repay the debt. One of those
woul d be appropriation debt.” He said [Merrill Lynch] | ooked at

the possibility of structuring an obligation that was subject to
annual appropriation and questioned whether that would be
covered under the unbrella of a general obligation. He said the
response received from a nunber of attorneys is that it would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 12, 2006



not be covered; it would be considered to be a separate
obligation and one, in fact, that could be issued.

MR. SUNDBERG said another question, primary to the use of the
Bond Bank, is whether there are obligations that could be
structured as contractual obligations. He offered the exanple
of a funding that he personally has been involved in is that of
the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) headquarters in
Anchor age. He explained that the FBI building is secured by

cont ract ual paynent s from the u. S Cener al Servi ces
Adm nistration (GSA) that flow through an internediate entity.
He added, "And that's ... what would be nore referred to as a

contract obligation, as opposed to a general obligation. So, we
| ooked at that as another vehicle, and again one that we felt
would make the attorneys nore confortable |ooking at the
constitution restrictions and |ooking at the available
mechani snms that mght be used to secure an obligation as a neans
of selling debt.

MR. SUNDBERG expl ained that once the attorneys give the okay,

the flip side of the coin is having to question: "I's this
something we could sell into the market? Wuld investors buy
it?" He clarified that the question of whether or not bond
council wll provide an opinion is separate from the question of
whether there wll be a nmarket for these obligations at a
desirabl e rate. He concluded, "And we feel in the case of both
the contract obligation nodel, as well as the appropriation

nodel , that structurally we can get to sonething that has a | ot
of investor appeal."

10: 31: 58 AM

MR. SUNDBERG, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
a contract obligation is very simlar to a revenue bond
obligation. He offered the exanple that an individual nunicipa
entity that cones to the Bond Bank has a "cunul ated contractua
obligation" to nmke paynents into the pension obligation, and
instead of making those paynents on an annual basis into the
pension fund, that funding would be provided up front by the
i ssuance of bonds and the nunicipal entity would instead be
maki ng contractual paynments to bond hol ders.

CHAI R SEATON stated his wunderstanding that M. Sundberg was
separating out the past service cost from the normal service
cost. The latter, he noted, would still be paid by the
muni ci pality into PERS.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 12, 2006



MR. SUNDBERG said that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG recalled that there was a bill passed
| ast year that provided for a type of alternative funding that
was contract ual

10: 33: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON confirmed [with information shared by M. Mtchel
of f m crophone] that the bill had to do with a virology |ab that
deal t wWith structured paynents from the Departnent of
Admi ni strati on.

10: 34: 23 AM

MR. SUNDBERG said he would conclude that the vehicle that was
used was "referred in our lexicon as a certificate of
participation.”

10: 34: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d yes.

10: 34: 43 AM
MR. SUNDBERG said, "That particular obligation does ... bear a
great resenblance to what you are doing with what | refer to as,

sort of, mddle-ground type obligation that you could construct
under [HB] 278."

10: 34: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to part of Article 9, Section
8, of the Alaska State Constitution, which read:

No state debt shall be contracted unl ess authorized by
law for capital inprovenents or unless authorized by
|aw for housing loans for veterans, and ratified by a
majority of the qualified voters of the State who vote
on the question.

He suggested that the legislature should | ook at whether that
provision is out of date and the state should be provided with
nore flexibility.

10: 36: 16 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- January 12, 2006



MR. SUNDBERG said there is a two-stage check on the entire
process: First, the bill does not replace or circunvent the
existing jurisdiction's process for issuing bonds. No one will
be getting blanket authorization. The bill just adds the
potential to use a tool if it is viewed as a prudent part of an
overall package, wth regard to the balance of state and
muni ci pal obligations as well as market conditions. Second,
each individual entity would have to go through a serious review
by the rating agencies. He continued:

Rat i ng agenci es have general ly becone quite

confortable with this as a tool. In fact, they've
becone nore confortable with the tool than entities
that are trying to get along without it. They view
the obligations in the same way we do - that it's a
contractual obligation you have to fund on an annual
basi s. And their question is very simlar to mne:
"Do you do it at [an] 8.25 percent interest rate, or
do you do it at a lower market rate?" They do not

necessarily penalize you for not using this tool, but
they certainly don't penalize you for using it when
it's conbined with a prudent investnent practice. And
the key is "prudent investnment of proceeds.”

10: 39: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to page 5 of the update, which
expl ai ns pension financing. He noted [that the chart show ng
"taxabl e pension bond financings"] shows that the nunber of
financings in 2003 was approximately 70, but it dropped to |ess
than 60 in 2004 and to less than 40 in 2005. He asked what the
reason is for that fairly rapid decline.

10: 40: 29 AM

MR. SUNDBERG responded that much like a lot of sectors of the
market, the issuance of pension obligations tends to be a
somewhat "Il unpy" proposition. He reminded the commttee that
the chart shows the nunber of financings rather than the dollar
anount of financings; therefore, the dollar volune my have
i ncreased while the nunmber of financings decreased. In response
to a followup question from Chair Seaton, he noted that there
was a dip in interest rates in 2003, which corresponded with an
increase in financing. He concluded, "If we remain at or near
the level of interest rates that we are experiencing right now,
we would anticipate that based on the growing problem and this
being nore and nore accepted as a good tool to address the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- January 12, 2006



problem ... you'll see nore financings done - in terns of
dol I ar amount . "

10: 43: 18 AM

MARK PRUSSING  Vice President, Seattle-Northwest Securities
Cor por ati on, said that the corporation is the |eading
underwiter of nunicipal bonds and financial advisory work in
the Northwest and is the financial advisor to the State of
Washi ngton and the City & Borough of Juneau. In response to a
request from Chair Seaton, he explained that underwiting bonds
nmeans buying the bonds and turning around and selling them to
investors, thereby taking the risk of finding the buyers for
t hose bonds. He stated that he and M. Sundberg are conpetitors
in their everyday business; however, "in this effort we are
joining forces in that we both have an interest ... in providing
a framework for the State of Alaska to issue pension obligation
bonds."” The nature of each one of those individual obligations
will vary, he said.

MR. PRUSSI NG reveal ed that he has had 25 years of public finance
experience - a substantial amount of that in Al aska. He offered

further credentials. He said he was involved in the initiation
of the Alaska State Pension |Investnent Board and "served the
staff" to that board for a nunber of years. He said he

currently works in nmunicipal finance and underwites bond
i Ssues.

10: 46: 14 AM

MR. PRUSSING in response to a request for clarification from
Representative Guenberg, said he is speaking today as both a

potential financial advisor and a potential underwiter. He
said his information today is neant to be shared as
"informational in nature” rather than as any obligation his

corporation has with the State of Al aska or municipal entity.

10:47:24 AM

MR. PRUSSING said the Seattle-Northwest Securities Corporation
t hi nks the Bond Bank could provide a broader ability for smaller
muni ci pal entities to enter the capital markets "that others
would not be able to." He said the corporation sees many
paral |l el s between Oregon and Al aska. He noted that in one case
the Oregon School Board Association forned its own entity to
i ssue bonds with a trustee. He said that would be simlar to if
the Al aska Minicipal League decided to pool municipalities

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- January 12, 2006



t oget her. He said the Bond Bank is not the only vehicle, but
the corporation thinks it would be a good one, especially if it
were the intent of the legislature to provide sonme additional
security for the bonds that were issued through the Bond Bank.
He said he doesn't think that's what's anticipated currently,
but it could be added on if it were the goal of the legislature
to reduce the borrowing cost of the entities that issue bonds
t hrough the Bond Bank.

MR. PRUSSI NG conti nued as foll ows:

For exanple, you could put into place a stronger
ability to intercept revenues to a school district or
muni ci pality that the noney goes to the Bond Bank to
make that debt paynment first. Doi ng that would all ow
an entity to put that pledge in place, and it allows
investors then greater security that they're going to
receive their noney before the operations -- they're
the first handout, if you wll, when noney cones in.
And this would particularly play a role in the TRS
system where the mgjority of funding from schoo

districts conmes from the state. Putting an intercept
in place to intercept that noney first before it goes
to the school districts to pay the debt service on
t hese bonds, would increase investor acceptance. And
what that nmeans is it would provide a |ower interest
rate on that pension obligation bond. And ... rather
than having that liability accruing at 8.25 percent,
having it accrue at a lower rate would actually result
in nore of the noney that you send to the school
districts being put to use in education and in the
cl assroons. So, we think that if you choose to use
the Bond Bank, ... it would be a good vehicle to add
on sone abilities, if that's what you choose to do.
We think that, of course, the stronger credit quality
that you can provide, the l|lower the borrow ng cost
woul d be; but it is a legislative decision on how rmuch
t he state wants to st and in to hel p t he
muni ci palities.

10: 50: 18 AM

MR. PRUSSING in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
the information he had just discussed can be found on page 13 of
his handout [entitled, "Pension Obligation Bonds," included in
the commttee packet]. He continued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- January 12, 2006



And this is something that you could do without really
putting the state behind the debt - say for ... any of
the school districts that pool together. You woul dn't
be saying that if they default ... you would step in
and make that paynent. But what you would be saying
is that you would provide the Bond Bank the authority
to intercept the noney going through the district to
make the debt paynents.

CHAI R SEATON, regarding the term "intercept," asked if M.
Prussing is talking about the PERS paynment that is comng from
t he school district based on the contribution rate.

MR. PRUSSI NG answered no. He clarified, "W're talking about
the noney that the state pays to the school district to

support its operations. ... A portion of that could be
intercepted in between the state and the school district to nake
t he paynent on the bonds through the Bond Bank."” 1In response to

a question from Representative Guenberg, he confirned that he
i s tal ki ng about foundation fornula noney.

10: 53: 22 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked if that wuld be the portion of the
foundation fornmula noney that is related to the salary base of
teachers that make the contribution to PERS.

10: 53: 49 AM

MR.  PRUSSING answered that the goal would be to provide
bondhol ders nore assurance that the district is going to nake
its paynment on the bond. He said, "To the extent that you can
intercept any funds before [they] get to the hands of the
school district ... and send [those funds] to bond holders
provi des greater assurance to the bond holders that they're
going to receive their noney." He enphasized that he offered
the previous remarks as an exanple, not a proposal.

10: 55: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to a concern stated by Chair
Seaton, said he thinks the conmttee is focused on the specifics

when it should have been a nore general conmentary. He said,
"The interest on the debt will be lower if there is less risk to
t he | ender. All that we're really discussing in this point is

. a possibility of a way the state itself may, as a policy
decision, decide to lower the risk to the lender of the noney."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- January 12, 2006



He spoke of a nunicipal revenue sharing program as possibly
bei ng another source. There are any nunber of technical devices
that could be considered; however, the bill is only the
framework to "make this happen.™ He said it mght be best to
consider vehicles that mght specifically aid in an execution
when they are specifically identified, "rather than trying to
create a generic catchall that m ght open up or m ght cause sone
unanti ci pated consequences.”

10: 57: 36 AM

MR. PRUSSI NG agreed with the conments of Representative Hawker.
He said the state later <could consider a constitutiona
anendnent that would allow a nunicipality to issue genera
obl i gation bonds to fund pension obligation bonds.

10: 58: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Prussing if he knows of any
advi sors who would be likely to advi se agai nst POBs.

10: 58: 47 AM

MR. PRUSSING recalled that within the Departnment of Revenue
there is an opinion that POBs should be entered into cautiously.
He said his corporation would agree with that assessnent. He
said it is inportant to analyze the risk of any financing that
is undertaken. He said:

And in this case the risk is: "WIl you earn nore
than you're paying on the bonds?" If you ... borrow
nmoney and put it into an investnment vehicle, and if
you do not earn at |east what you' re paying on those
bonds, you woul d have been better off not doing that.

MR. PRUSSING said the State of Oregon conducted a statistica

analysis in 2003 and cane up with the conclusion that there was
a 90 percent probability of exceeding the bond interest rate
with their investnent earnings. He stated that any investnent
vehicl e has tradeoffs. The |eaders in Oregon that noved for
i ncorporating POBs were the school districts and rmnunicipalities;

initially the state was opposed to issuing POBs. He offered
further details. He stated that Al aska would not be cutting new
ground; however, the legal framework of the state is different.
He said his corporation plans on working with the Al aska
Retirement and Managenent Board to | ook at the nuts and bolts of
the system to ensure that the noney that is put in can be

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- January 12, 2006



appropriately accounted for and +the entity receives the
appropriate benefit. He said each governnental entity has its
own process for approving debt, whether it's a nunicipal entity,
or the state. If the state were to do sonmething on its
l[tability, that is sonething that could be addressed through HB
278, or through a constitutional anendnent. He said it's
important to distinguish between the state's liability and what
it wants to do with it versus the nunicipalities' liabilities
and what each wants to do wth them He concluded, "This
| egi slation, essentially, while it may eventually be used for
the state, [is] mainly geared, as | believe, to allow the
municipalities to work wth their legislative bodies to
determine whether this is an appropriate vehicle for their
finances."

11: 03: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Prussing what kind of
constitutional amendnent was necessary in O egon

11: 03: 46 AM

MR. PRUSSING said Oregon could not legally issue bonds. I n
response to a followup question from Representative G uenberg,
he said his corporation would provide the conmttee with further
information in that regard. He also noted that he has asked
| egal counsel to draft what a constitutional anendnent would
| ook l|ike for Al aska. He offered to work with M. Mtchell to
provi de that.

[HB 278 was heard and hel d. ]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
11: 04: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- January 12, 2006



